# City of Belle Isle, Florida PURCHASING POLICY



Adopted by Resolution 20-08

July 7, 2020

# City of Belle Isle, Florida

# PURCHASING POLICY

# **Table of Contents**

SECTION	N 1 – INTRODUCTION	
1.1	Purpose	1
1.2	Scope	
1.3	Responsibilities	
1.4	Changes in Laws and Regulations	
1.5	Severability	
1.6	Governing Rules/Guidelines	
1.7	City's Rights	
1.8	Non-Discrimination	
CECTION	12 DEFINITIONS	
2.1	N 2 – DEFINITIONS	2
	Definitions	3
SECTION	N 3 – ETHICS AND CODE OF CONDUCT	
3.1	Ethical Standards	5
	Lobbying	
	Disqualification of Vendors	
3.4	Unauthorized Purchases	6
3.5	Violations of this Policy	6
OFOTION	. LA DUDQUAQNO METUODO AND TUDEQUALDO	
	N 4 – PURCHASING METHODS AND THRESHOLDS	_
	Purchases less than \$2,500	
	Purchases from \$2,500 to \$49,999	
	Purchases \$50,000 and greater	
	Cooperative Purchasing	
4.5	Sole Source / Non-Competitive Purchases	
4.6	Government Agency Contracts (Piggyback)	8
4.7	Emergency Purchases	8
SECTION	N 5 – PURCHASING APPROVAL THRESHOLDS	
5.1	Approval Thresholds	9
SECTION	N 6 – PURCHASING PROCEDURES	
6.1	New Vendors	10
6.2	Tax Exempt Status	10
6.3	Vendor Invoices	10
6.4	Invoice Approval	10
6.5	Check Requests	10
6.6	Vendor Payments	
6.7	Purchasing Cards / Credit Cards	
6.8	Petty Cash	10
6.9	Response Rejections	
	Advertisement Requirements	
	Change Order Approval	
	Contract Approvals, Amendments, Renewals, and Extensions	
6.13	Appeal Procedures	12
SECTION	N 7 – ADDITIONAL POLICES AND PROCEDURES	
7.1		12
7.1 7.2	Disposal of Surplus Items	
7.2	Environmental Purchasing	
7.3 7.4	State or Federally Funded Grant Procurements	
7. <del>4</del>	State of a cucraity a unucu Grant a rocurchichis	ıJ

#### **SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Purchasing Policy, (hereinafter referred to as "Policy") is to establish the necessary policies and procedures for the City of Belle Isle, (hereinafter referred to as "City") to obtain goods and services in the most efficient, economical and ethical manner.

#### 1.2 SCOPE

This Policy shall apply to all purchases of goods and services by the City.

#### 1.3 RESPONSIBILITIES

The City Manager is the purchasing agent for the City and is responsible to ensure this Policy is followed by all City departments. The Finance Director is the primary contact for questions regarding this Policy. It is the responsibility of all who have been delegated to purchase for the City to adhere to this Policy.

#### 1.4 CHANGES IN LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In the event an applicable law or regulation is modified or eliminated, or a new law or regulation is adopted, the revised law or regulation shall, to the extent inconsistent with this Policy, automatically supersede this Policy.

#### 1.5 SEVERABILITY

If any section of this Policy, or any application thereof, to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other sections or applications of this Policy, which can be given effect without the invalid section or application, and to this end, the sections or applications of this Policy are declared to be severable.

#### 1.6 GOVERNING RULES/GUIDELINES

The terms and provisions of this Policy shall be deemed by operation of law to be a part of the term and conditions of each procurement or contract involving the City of Belle Isle as a part, except that an authorized official has expressly provided for a written exception to one or more of the requirements provided for in this Policy with respect to a particular procurement or contract.

All City departments, employees, and elected officials shall be in accordance with this Policy, unless otherwise governed under a specific policy.

All purchases will be made in an economical manner to achieve the best value, avoiding unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration will be given to consolidating or breaking out purchases to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach.

The City will award contracts only to responsible vendors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as vendor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical resources.

In regards to the dollar threshold amounts indicated in this Policy, the total cost of the purchase should be considered, not the cost of the individual items. In addition, purchases should not be artificially or purposely divided to circumvent the dollar threshold limits.

A competitive bid process is a transparent method in which competing suppliers are invited by openly advertising the scope, terms and conditions, and evaluation criteria. The award is made to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder meeting the qualifications and specifications. The goal is to obtain goods and services at the lowest price by stimulating competition.

Adopted July 2020 Page 1 of 13

**PURCHASING POLICY** 

#### 1.7 CITY'S RIGHTS

Nothing in this Policy reduces or invalidates the City's right to accept or reject any or all bids or proposals or any parts thereof, and to award, if an award is made, to the most responsible bidder whose bid and qualifications indicate that the award will be in the best interest of the City.

#### 1.8 NON-DISCRIMINATION

It is the policy of the City to promote the principles of equal opportunity in its contracting activities by assuring that those seeking to do business with the city will treat contractors, subcontractors, and employees equally and will not engage in discrimination against their contractors, subcontractors, or employees because of their actual or perceived race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, disability, medical condition, marital status, domestic partner status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation or as a member of any other protected class.

The Contractor will certify to the City that that no person shall on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, family or religious status, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 and other nondiscrimination authorities be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination or retaliation under any program or activity.

Adopted July 2020 Page 2 of 13

#### SECTION 2 – DEFINITIONS

#### 2.1 **DEFINITIONS**

Wherever used in this Policy, the following terms have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof and all genders:

Agency: A state agency, a municipality, a political subdivision, a school district, or a school board.

<u>Best Value</u>: The highest overall value based on factors that include, but are not limited to price, quality, design, time, and workmanship.

Bid: A formal written price offer from a vendor to the City to furnish goods, products or services.

<u>Contractor</u>: Any person or entity (including officers, directors, executives and shareholders who are active in the management of a person or entity) who bids or applies to bid on any work of the City, or who provides (or solicits to provide) goods or professional services to the City. For purposes of this Policy, Contractor, Supplier, and Vendor may be used interchangeably.

<u>Contractual Services</u>: The rendering by a contractor of its time and effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are independent contractors, and such services may include, but are not limited to, evaluations, consultations, accounting, security, management systems, management consulting, educational training programs, research and development studies or reports, and technical and social services. Contractual Services does not include any contract for furnishing of services, labor or materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or demolition of any roadway or bridge, building, portion of building, utility, or structure.

<u>Cooperative Purchasing</u>: Procurement conducted by or on behalf of more than one public procurement unit or agency.

<u>Emergency</u>: A reasonably unforeseen breakdown in machinery, damage, destruction or obstruction of machinery or roadway or any property owned or operated by the City; a threatened termination of an essential service; the development of a dangerous condition; the development of a circumstance causing the stoppage or slowdown of an essential service; a threat to the public health, welfare or safety; or the opportunity to secure significant financial gain, or avoid significant financial loss, through immediate or timely action.

<u>Firm</u>: Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity permitted by law to practice architecture, engineering, or surveying and mapping in the state.

<u>Procurement</u>: Buying, purchasing, renting, leasing or otherwise acquiring any goods or services for public purposes in accordance with the law, rules, regulations and procedures intended to provide for the economic expenditure of public funds. It includes, but is not limited to, all functions which pertain to the obtaining of any supplies, materials, equipment and/or services, including Contractual Service, Design Professional Services, and Professional Services, construction projects and capital improvement projects required by the City regardless of the source of funds.

<u>Professional Services</u>: The value of services which are substantially measured by professional competence of the firm performing them and which are not susceptible to realistic evaluation/assessment by cost of services alone. Professional Services shall include but are not limited to, accountants, auditors, engineers, financial advisors, information technology consultants, insurance services, legal services, marketing firms, and planning consultants.

<u>Renewal</u>: Contracting with the same contractor for an additional contract period after the initial contract period, only if pursuant to contract terms specifically providing for such renewal.

Request for Bid (RFB): A written or electronically posted solicitation for competitive sealed bids.

<u>Request for Information (RFI)</u>: A written or electronically posted request made by an agency to vendors for information concerning commodities or contractual services. Responses to these requests are not offers and may not be accepted by the agency to form a binding contract.

Adopted July 2020 Page 3 of 13

# City of Belle Isle, Florida

#### **PURCHASING POLICY**

Request for Proposal (RFP): A written or electronically posted solicitation for competitive sealed proposals.

<u>Request for Qualification (RFQ)</u>: Used to obtain statements of qualification of potential development teams or consultants.

<u>Responsive Bid/Proposal/Reply</u>: A bid, or proposal, or reply submitted by a responsive and responsible vendor which conforms in all material respects to the solicitation.

<u>Responsible Vendor</u>: A vendor that has submitted a bid, proposal, or reply that conforms in all material respects to the solicitation.

<u>Sole Source</u>: A procurement in which only one vendor is capable of suppling the goods or services, one is selected for substantial reasons, eliminating the competitive bidding process.

Supplier: See "Contractor".

**Vendor**: See "Contractor".

Adopted July 2020 Page 4 of 13

#### SECTION 3 - ETHICS AND CODE OF CONDUCT

#### 3.1 ETHICAL STANDARDS

The City is committed to a purchasing process governed by the highest ethical standards and integrity to inspire the confidence of the organization and the public being served. To achieve these purposes, the City subscribes to the following code of ethics:

- The City will avoid unfair practices by granting all competitive respondents equal consideration as required by Federal, State, and City regulations.
- The City will conduct business in good faith, demanding honesty and ethical practices from all participants in the purchasing process.
- The City will promote positive vendor relationships by affording courteous, fair, and ethical treatment.
- The City will avoid involvement in any transactions or activities that could be considered a conflict between personal interest and the interests of the City.

Employees must not become obligated to any suppliers and shall not participate in any City transaction from which they may personally benefit. Except as may be authorized by applicable State law, no employee or elected official shall accept gifts, gratuities, rebates, kickbacks, or benefits of any kind from prospective bidders, vendors, or suppliers. No employee or elected official shall bid for, enter into, or be in any manner interested in any contract for City purchase. No employee or elected official shall seek to influence the purchase of a product or service from any supplier or vendor. This restriction shall not be construed to restrict persons from evaluating and appraising the quality and value of the product to be purchased or service(s) to be rendered where the person's scope of employment contemplates advice and counsel with respect to the purchase.

The avoidance of actual or perceived conflicts of interest is a prerequisite to the efficient and sound operation of the City and maintenance of the public trust.

All City of Belle Isle employees shall adhere to the ethical standards contained in the Florida Statutes Chapter 112, Part III, Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, as well as those contained in the City of Belle Isle Personnel Manual and the City of Belle Isle Conflict of Interest Policy.

#### 3.2 LOBBYING

Lobbying of evaluation committee members, city employees, or elected officials regarding any type of formal solicitation or contract, during the selection process or bid protest, by the bidder/proposer/protester or any member of the bidder's/proposer's staff, an agent of the bidder/proposer/protester, or any person employed by any legal entity affiliated with or representing an organization that has responded to a formal solicitation or contract or has a pending bid protest is strictly prohibited either upon publication of the formal solicitation until either an award is final or the protest is completely resolved by the City.

Nothing herein shall prohibit a prospective bidder/proposer from contacting the City to address situations such as clarification and/or questions related to the procurement process as outlined in the formal solicitation documents. For purposes of this provision, lobbying activities shall include but are not limited to, influencing or attempting to influence action or non-action in connection with any formal solicitation or contract, through direct or indirect oral or written communication, or an attempt to obtain goodwill of persons and/or entities specified in this provision. Such actions may cause any formal solicitation or contract to be rejected.

#### 3.3 DISQUALIFICATION OF VENDORS

Vendors who are debarred, suspended, or otherwise ineligible to transact business with public entities as determined by the State of Florida Department of Management Services and included on such lists as the Suspended Vendors List or Convicted Vendors List are barred from submitting bids for any City solicitations.

Adopted July 2020 Page 5 of 13

#### 3.4 UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASES

An unauthorized purchase occurs when any employee of the City orders, contracts for or buys any goods, services, materials or supplies outside the purview of this Policy. Any individual making an unauthorized purchase may be subject to disciplinary actions as appropriate, which may include termination and/or prosecution. The following are unauthorized purchasing practices:

- Artificially dividing purchases into multiple segments in an attempt to circumvent the dollar threshold approvals or requirements as established.
- Purchasing any goods and/or services above the thresholds delineated herein.
- Committing to a purchase without proper approval.
- Obtaining items available on an existing City term contract from a supplier that does not hold the contract.
- Providing false information such as false quotations (without actually contacting and obtaining a quotation, bid or proposal from a vendor).

#### 3.5 VIOLATIONS OF THIS POLICY

Any individual, employee, or elected official, in violation of this Policy may be subject to disciplinary actions as appropriate, which may include termination and/or prosecution.

Adopted July 2020 Page 6 of 13

#### SECTION 4 – PURCHASING METHODS AND THRESHOLDS

The methods below shall be used in the purchasing of goods and services for the use of the City.

#### 4.1 PURCHASES LESS THAN \$2,500

#### A. INFORMAL PURCHASING - PURCHASES LESS THAN \$2,500

Informal purchasing may be used for the purchase of goods and services costing less than \$2,500. While written quotes and bids are not necessary for items or services costing less than \$2,500 or specifically excluded in applicable State law, every effort should be made to ensure goods and services are being purchased in the most efficient and cost effective manner possible.

#### 4.2 PURCHASES FROM \$2,500 TO \$49,999

#### A. QUOTE REQUEST – PURCHASES FROM \$2,500 TO \$49,999

At least three (3) written quotes must be obtained for the purchases of goods and services costing from \$2,500 to \$49,999. Specifications will be developed prior to solicitation of the quotes so all vendors are providing a quote on the same level. If at least three (3) written quotes are not possible, a written explanation of such must be approved by the City Manager based on Purchasing Approval Thresholds (see Section 4). The supporting documentation must be included with the quotes.

Quote award must be based on qualifications of the prospective vendor, acceptability of the product, delivery time, inventories, past performance, degree of compliance with requirements, price and other circumstances that will encourage delivery of the best products and services.

#### 4.3 PURCHASES \$50,000 AND GREATER

#### A. REQUEST FOR BID (RFB)

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Request for Bid (RFB) process is a formal solicitation required for purchases of goods and services costing at least \$50,000 when the City is capable of specifically establishing *precise* specifications defining the actual commodity or contractual services. Responses to the RFB must be received in a sealed bid format, opened and read aloud at a specific date, time and location.

#### B. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Request for Proposal (RFP) is a formal solicitation required for the purchase of goods and services costing at least \$50,000 when the City *cannot* specifically define the scope of work or when it is not practical or advantageous to procure by competitive sealed bidding. The proposer provides detailed information in response to the RFP which may result in a contractual agreement. The RFP process allows for negotiation in the scope of services, terms and conditions, price, and delivery.

#### C. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION (RFQ)

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Request for Qualification (RFQ) is a formal solicitation required for the acquisition of professional services costing at least \$50,000. RFQ proposals primarily indicate information regarding the education and experience background of the respondent. Price is not to be indicated in the initial RFQ but it is negotiated with successful respondent. If the RFQ is for professional architectural, engineering, landscape architectural or surveying and mapping services, then the rules of applicable State law shall apply.

Adopted July 2020 Page 7 of 13

#### D. REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI)

The Request for Information (RFI) method is used to help gather information about a product or service in order to make a decision. The RFI may also be used to collect detailed information about potential suppliers and their capabilities; to advise potential suppliers of the City's intent to purchase a certain product or service; and to show that the City is acting in a fair manner and including all potential participants. The RFI may be utilized for any threshold dollar amount.

#### 4.4 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING

The City Manager shall have the authority to join with other units of government agencies in cooperative purchasing ventures when the best interest of the City would be served and the purchase is in accordance with the City's Purchasing Policy.

#### 4.5 SOLE SOURCE / NON-COMPETITIVE PURCHASES

The competitive bid process is waived when it is determined and substantiated in writing, after conducting a good faith review of available sources, that there is only one source for the goods and services or it is determined that competitive bidding is neither practical, feasible nor advantageous to the City in securing goods and services. Price, scope, terms and conditions may be negotiated whenever possible and a record of sole source/non-competitive procurement shall be maintained by the Finance Department. A written justification of the sole source/non-competitive purchase must be approved by the City Manager prior to the purchase and accompany the invoice for payment. Sole source/non-competitive purchases exceeding \$50,000 require City Council approval.

#### 4.6 GOVERNMENT AGENCY CONTRACTS (PIGGYBACK)

The competitive bid process is waived in the event that the desired goods and services may be purchased from other governmental agencies when such contracts are the result of a competitive public procurement process. All purchases pursuant to other government agency contracts must be reviewed and evaluated by the City Manager to determine if it meets the City's requirements regarding competitive bidding and award.

#### 4.7 EMERGENCY PURCHASES

The competitive bid process is waived when the normal functioning and operation of the City would be hampered or where property, equipment, public health or life could be endangered through unexpected circumstances by adhering to the usual purchasing procedures. A written justification detailing the complete circumstances of the emergency and probable consequences along with supporting documentation of the emergency purchase must be approved by the City Manager prior to the purchase. The approval must accompany the invoice for payment. The lack of planning does not constitute an emergency.

In the event an official state of emergency has been declared, the City Manager is expressly authorized to execute contracts with the State of Florida, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and/or other applicable emergency relief entities on behalf of the City in order to accomplish all necessary relief efforts, provided that the requirements of this section have been met.

The City Manager shall report to the City Council any emergency procurement exceeding his purchasing authority threshold at the next scheduled City Council meeting.

Adopted July 2020 Page 8 of 13

### **SECTION 5 – PURCHASING APPROVAL THRESHOLDS**

# 5.1 APPROVAL THRESHOLDS

The following purchasing approvals apply for the purchase of goods and services for the City:

Capital Assets	Regardless of amount, if the purchase is for a capital asset, pre-approval must be obtained by the City Manager. A capital asset includes property, plant equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks and similar items) with an initial, individual cost of more than \$750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
----------------	--

Purchase Amount	<u>Approver</u>
Less than \$2,500	Supervisor or Manager
From \$2,500 to	Department Head or designee, if the cost of goods and services to be purchased is included in the approved budget for the department.  City Manager or designee, if the item or service is not included in the approved budget
\$14,999	for the department and a budget amendment is not necessary.
	<u>City Council</u> , if the item or service to be purchased is <i>not included in the approved budget</i> for the department and a <i>budget amendment is necessary</i> .
From \$45,000 to	City Manager or designee, if the item or service to be purchased is included in the approved budget for the department.
From \$15,000 to \$49,999	<u>City Manager</u> if the item or service is <i>not included in the approved budget</i> for the department and a <i>budget amendment is not necessary</i> .
	<u>City Council</u> , if the item or service to be purchased is <i>not included in the approved</i> budget for the department and a budget amendment is necessary.
\$50,000 or greater	City Council

Adopted July 2020 Page 9 of 13

#### SECTION 6 – PURCHASING PROCEDURES

#### 6.1 NEW VENDORS

Vendors are required to submit a completed and signed IRS Form W-9 before receiving any payment from the City. It is the responsibility of each department to make sure the vendor has provided the Form W-9 prior to making any purchase.

#### 6.2 TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The City is exempt from paying Florida State Sales Tax. All employees who purchase goods or services on behalf of the City shall supply each vendor with a copy of the City's tax exemption certificate or tax exempt number to avoid being assessed state sales taxes. The City's Sales Tax Exemption is for the purchase of goods or services exclusively for use of the City. Employees and officials are expressly prohibited from purchasing goods or services for personal use using the City's tax exemption number/certificate.

#### 6.3 VENDOR INVOICES

An invoice must be provided to the City before any payment will be made. The vendor listed on the invoice must match the vendor provided on the IRS Form W-9. The invoice must also include an invoice number, date, description of goods or services provided and amount. The City will not issue payment from a quote, estimate, delivery ticket, or statement.

#### 6.4 INVOICE APPROVAL

The City does not use purchase orders; however, an Invoice Approval form must be attached to all invoices except for contracts, utilities, professional services and other recurring disbursements. The Invoice Approval form must contain the vendor name, a description of the purchase, amount, and the expenditure account and must signed by the department head or their designee. All applicable back-up documentation including quotes, formal bids, competitive negotiation documentation or the appropriate exception to the process, including sole source purchase documentation, must be attached to the invoice.

After department approval, the Invoice Approval form, invoice, and all required documentation, is submitted to the City Manager for approval.

#### 6.5 CHECK REQUESTS

Check requests are used for purchases that are exempt from the normal purchasing process. Common uses of check requests include subscriptions, memberships, dues, registrations, donations, reimbursements, etc. Proper documentation must be attached showing itemized details and cost.

#### 6.6 VENDOR PAYMENTS

The City processes payments in accordance with the Prompt Payment Act. Vendors should contact the City's Finance Department regarding payment status or questions.

#### 6.7 PURCHASING CARDS / CREDIT CARDS

Purchasing Cards/Credit Cards are covered under a separate policy. Please refer to the City of Belle Isle Credit Card Policy for Elected Officials and City Employees.

#### 6.8 PETTY CASH

Petty cash funds are used for expenditures of \$50 or less made by a City employee, elected official, or committee member. Adequate receipts and documentation must be maintained to support all transactions made from Petty Cash and attached to a Petty Cash slip signed by the individual requesting the funds as well as the Department Head or designee and City Manager.

Adopted July 2020 Page 10 of 13

#### 6.9 RESPONSE REJECTIONS

In all of purchasing methods stated in this Policy, the City Manager has the authority to reject any or all responses after the solicitation due date when it has been determined that the respondent(s) is non-responsive or award recommendation is not in the best interest of the City. In the event of a Request for Proposal or Qualification, where there is an Evaluation Committee established to review the responses, the Evaluation Committee must make a recommendation the City Manager to reject any or all responses.

#### **6.10 ADVERTISEMENT REQUIREMENTS**

Formal solicitations such as Request for Bids, Request for Proposals and Request for Qualifications must be advertised at least once in a newspaper of general paid circulation which is published at least five (5) days a week in Orange County. Other publications may be used in addition to this requirement to reach selected markets.

Adequate public notice of formal solicitations with estimated value less than \$200,000 must be given a minimum of seven (7) days from the solicitation due date. Formal solicitations with projected cost greater than \$200,000 must appear at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the solicitation due date and at least five (5) days prior to any scheduled pre-submission meeting. Formal solicitations for construction projects that are projected to cost more than \$500,000 must be advertised at least thirty (30) days prior to the solicitation due date and at least five (5) days prior to any scheduled pre-submission meeting.

Quote Requests and Requests for Information are not required to be advertised in the newspaper.

#### 6.11 CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL

To avoid a delay in the progress of any project, the City Manager or designee may approve, without further Council action, a change order to an existing contract provided the change order is within the overall scope of the project, does not exceed the greater of ten percent (10%) of the original contract amount or \$100,000 for construction projects, or does not exceed \$49,999 for non-construction projects, and the funds are available in the approved budget for the Department. If the change order is in excess of the above threshold or if the increase in cost requires a budget amendment, the change order must be approved by the City Council. The City Manager will ensure the scope of services is in accordance with the contract specifications.

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract. All change orders must be approved in writing by the City prior to the work commencing unless the delay in receiving City approval causes serious threat to the public health, safety or welfare, or will result in significant additional cost to the City due to delay. Under any circumstance, work to be performed under the change order shall not begin until all written approvals have been received. Any work completed by the contractor without required written approvals will be the sole responsibility of the contractor, not the City.

#### 6.12 CONTRACT APPROVALS, AMENDMENTS, RENEWALS, AND EXTENSIONS

The City Manager or designee is authorized to approve and execute contracts if the total contract amount does not exceed the Purchasing Approval thresholds (see Section 4) and funds are available in the approved budget for the Department. This includes, but is not limited to, service or maintenance agreements, awards on proposals, competitive negotiated agreements, and consultant services agreements. All contracts with a total value of \$50,000 or greater, one-time or annual basis, shall require City Council approval and signature of the Mayor.

The City Manager or designee is authorized to approve any change to a contract that alters the terms and conditions or provides a change in the scope which total value does not exceed the Purchasing Approval thresholds (see Section 4). Such changes must be signed and approved in a formal amendment. All amendments with total contract amount of \$50,000 or greater shall require City Council approval and signature of the Mayor.

Adopted July 2020 Page 11 of 13

## City of Belle Isle, Florida

#### **PURCHASING POLICY**

The City Manager is authorized to renew approved contracts as long as such action is in accordance with the terms, conditions, and renewal period specified in the original contract and the total dollar amount of the contract is within the City's approved budget. Contract renewals beyond six (6) years from the date of the original contract shall require City Council approval.

The City Manager is authorized to extend approved contracts for a period of no more than one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days when the extension serves the best interest of the City. Contract extensions exceeding one hundred eighty (180) calendar days shall require City Council approval.

#### 6.13 APPEAL PROCEDURES

A respondent to a City solicitation may only appeal any determination, decision or recommendation of the City Manager, in accordance herewith. All appeals must be in writing and sent via certified mail or delivered in person to the City Manager within three (3) business days of issuance of such determination, decision or recommendation. The City Manager shall administer the appeal and will render a decision within seven (7) business days of receiving the appeal. The decision by the City Manager may be appealed to City Council within the same timeframes. The decision of the City Council will be final and will represent the position of the City.

All appeals must set forth the specific reason and facts concerning the dispute. Any appeal based exclusively on disagreement with the technical judgment of evaluators is subject to summary rejection unless there is clear and convincing evidence of arbitrary or capricious action in that regard. In the event of a timely appeal, the City shall not proceed further with the solicitation or with the award of the bid/contract unless the City Manager, after consultation with the City Attorney, forwards to the City Council a written request to award the bid/contract without delay in order to protect the public health, safety or general welfare and the City Council approves said request.

Adopted July 2020 Page 12 of 13

#### **SECTION 7 – ADDITIONAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES**

#### 7.1 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS ITEMS

All tangible and intangible City property must be declared surplus by City Council prior to being disposed of. The City Manager is responsible for the disposition of surplus items that have been declared surplus by the City Council in accordance with Sections 2-221 to 2-226 of the municipal code. The City Manager shall have the authority to sell by auction or advertised bid, trade, donate or sell to another government entity, destroy, scrap, classify as waste, or dispose of excess surplus and obsolete supplies or personal property, regardless of the dollar amount. Records of such disposition shall be maintained in the Finance Department.

#### 7.2 MINORITY BUSINESSES

Minority businesses shall be ensured to have an equitable opportunity to participate in the City's procurement process.

#### 7.3 ENVIRONMENTAL PURCHASING

Environmental purchasing is defined as the procurement of goods and services that have less environmental and social impacts than competing products and services. The City Manager shall encourage wherever possible, specifications which provide for expanded use of durable goods and reusable goods containing the maximum post- consumer waste and recyclable content without affecting the intended use. Environmental factors to be considered may include recycled content, pollutant releases, waste generation, energy consumption, depletion of natural resources and potential impact on human health and the environment.

#### 7.4 STATE OR FEDERALLY FUNDED GRANT PROCUREMENTS

The City recognizes that certain procurement procedures for state or federally funded grant programs may conflict with standard City procedures. The City Manager is authorized to modify City procurement procedures in order to comply with procurement procedures for state of federally funded grant programs.

- For the administration of federal awards, the City will adhere to all federal procurement requirements outlined in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Requirements including the non-procurement and suspension regulations that restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities.
- Adherence to the Conflict of Interest Code will be strictly enforced.
- Contracts may not be awarded to contractors or individuals on the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-procurement Programs.
- A System for Award Management (SAM) review of potential contractors or individuals may be included in the process.
- No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the City may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.

Adopted July 2020 Page 13 of 13